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& B 15 8 R

1|3||_|,:

GENERAL INFORMATION

CSMC Technologies Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) manufactures and sells
integrated circuits and related products. The Group’s production

facilities are located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre, P.O.
Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British

West Indies.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

In 2005, the Group adopted the new / revised standards and
interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant to its
operations. The 2004 comparatives have been amended as

required, in accordance with the relevant requirements.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont'd)

HKAS 16

HKAS 17

HKAS 21

HKAS 23

HKAS 24

HKAS 27

HKAS 32

HKAS 33

HKAS 36

HKAS 38

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

The Effects of Changes in Foreign

Exchange Rates

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements

Financial Instruments: Disclosures and

Presentation

Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

Intangible Assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &
_

i 2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEETBEXR®
(a) Basis of preparation (Cont'd) (a) ABEZE®
The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont'd) R F R ETE BV BER
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 21, 23,
24, 27, 32, 33, 39 and HKAS-Ints 12 and 15 did not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. In

summary:

- HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 23, 27, 32, 33, 39 and HKAS-
Ints 12 and 15 had no material effect on the Group’s

policies.

- HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s policy.
The functional currency of each of the consolidated
entities has been re-evaluated based on the guidance

to the revised standard.

- HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related

parties and some other related-party disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont’'d)

The adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a change
in the accounting policy relating to the reclassification of
leasehold land and land use rights from property, plant and
equipment to operating leases. The up-front prepayments
made for the leasehold land and land use rights are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease or when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the income statement. In prior
years, the leasehold land was accounted for at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy for share-based payments. Until 31
December 2004, the provision of share options to employees
did not result in an expense in the income statements.
Effective on 1 January 2005, the Group expenses the cost of
share options in the income statement. As a transitional
provision, the cost of share options granted after 7 November
2002 and had not yet vested on 1 January 2005 was
expensed retrospectively in the income statement of the

respective periods (Note 2(0)).
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont'd)

The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 38 results in
a change in the accounting policy for goodwill. Until 31

December 2004, goodwill was:

- Amortised on a straight line basis over a period of 10

years; and

- Assessed for an indication of impairment at each

balance sheet date.

In accordance with the provisions of HKFRS 3 (Note 2(f)):

= The Group ceased amortisation of goodwill from 1
January 2005;

- Accumulated amortisation as at 31 December 2004 has
been eliminated with a corresponding decrease in the

cost of goodwill;

- From the year ended 31 December 2005 onwards,
goodwill is tested annually for impairment, as well as

when there is indication of impairment.

The Group has reassessed the useful lives of its intangible
assets in accordance with the provisions of HKAS 38. No

adjustment resulted from this reassessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &
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2 2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FESTHBEX®

;Lit (a) Basis of preparation (Cont'd) (a) ABEZE®
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont'd)

The adoption of HKFRS 2 resulted in:

Increase in share capital

N

Decrease in retained earnings 8 ZFI#)E 2
Increase in cost of goods sold 4 & Ak Zx 1

Increase in selling and

marketing costs

Increase in administrative

expenses

Increase in research and

development costs

Decrease in basic earnings

per share

Decrease in diluted earnings

per share
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(@) Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont’'d)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published

standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been published that are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2006 or later periods but which the Group has not

early adopted, as follows:

o HKAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits
(effective from 1 January 2006)

This amendment introduces the option of an alternative
recognition approach for actuarial gains and losses. It
may impose additional recognition requirements for
multi-employer plans where insufficient information is
available to apply defined benefit accounting. It also
adds new disclosure requirements. As the Group does
not intend to change the accounting policy adopted
for recognition of actuarial gains and looses and does
not participate in any multi-employer plans, adoption
of this amendment will only impact the format and extent
of disclosures presented in the accounts. The Group
will apply this amendment from annual periods

beginning 1 January 2006.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont'd)

HKAS 39 (Amendment), Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

(effective from 1 January 2006)

The amendment allows the foreign currency risk of a
highly probable forecast intragroup transaction to
qualify as a hedged item in the consolidated financial
statements, provided that: (a) the transaction is
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity entering into that transaction; and
(b) the foreign currency risk will affect consolidated
profit or loss. This amendment is not relevant to the
Group’s operations, as the Group does not have any
intragroup transactions that would qualify as a hedged
item in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2005 and 2004.

HKAS 39 (Amendment), The Fair Value Option
(effective from 1 January 2006)

This amendment changes the definition of financial
instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss
and restricts the ability to designate financial
instruments as part of this category. The Group believes
that this amendment should not have a significant
impact on the classification of financial instruments, as
the Group should be able to comply with the amended
criteria for the designation of financial instruments at
fair value through profit and loss. The Group will apply
this amendment from annual periods beginning 1
January 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont’'d)

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendment), Financial

Guarantee Contracts (effective from 1 January 2006)

This amendment requires issued financial guarantees,
other than those previously asserted by the entity to be
insurance contracts, to be initially recognized at their
fair value, and subsequently measured at the higher of
(a) the unamortized balance of the related fees received
and deferred, and (b) the expenditure required to settle
the commitment at the balance sheet date.
Management considered this amendment to HKAS 39

and concluded that it is not relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 1 (Amendment), First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and HKFRS 6
(Amendment), Exploration for and Evaluation of

Mineral Resources (effective from 1 January 2006)

These amendments are not relevant to the Group’s
operations, as the Group is not a first-time adopter and
does not carry out exploration for and evaluation of
mineral resources. HKFRS 6, Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral Resources (effective from 1

January 2006) is not relevant to the Group’s operations.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont'd)

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and
a complementary Amendment to HKAS 1,
Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital
Disclosures (effective from 1 January 2007)

HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the
information about financial instruments. It requires the
disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information
about exposure to risks arising from financial
instruments, including specified minimum disclosures
about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including
sensitivity analysis to market risk. It replaces HKAS 30,
Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and
Similar Financial Institutions, and disclosure
requirements in HKAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation. It is applicable to all
entities that report under HKFRS. The amendment to
HKAS 1 introduces disclosures about the level of an
entity’s capital and how it manages capital. The Group
assessed the impact of HKFRS 7 and the amendment
to HKAS 1 and concluded that the main additional
disclosures will be the sensitivity analysis to market risk
and the capital disclosures required by the amendment
of HKAS 1. The Group will apply HKFRS 7 and the
amendment to HKAS 1 from annual periods beginning
1 January 2007.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Cont’'d)

HKFRS-Int 4, Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease (effective from 1 January 2006)

HKFRS-Int 4 requires the determination of whether an
arrangement is or contains a lease to be based on the
substance of the arrangement. It requires an assessment
of whether: (a) fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets (the asset); and
(b) the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
Management is currently assessing the impact of

HKFRS-Int 4 on the Group’s operations.

HKFRS-Int 5, Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental

Rehabilitation Funds (effective from 1 January 2006)

HKFRS-Int 5 is not relevant to the Group’s operations.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6, Liabilities arising from Participating
in a Specific Market —Waste Electrical and Electronic

Equipment (effective from 1 December 2005)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 is not relevant to the Group’s operations.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up

to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing

whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group‘s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is

recognized directly in the income statement (Note 2(f)).
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ﬁ 2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEETBEXR®

e

% (b) Consolidation (Cont'd) (b) Z#REKRE (®

&

fﬂ Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains SERAFHENRS - #Ba Kk
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(c)

on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated but considered an
impairment indicator of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic

environments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that geographical segment by
locations of its ultimate customers be presented as the
primary and the only reporting format as the Group has only

one business segment.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as over 90%

of the Group’s assets are located in the PRC.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in United State dollar,

which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in

the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Transaction differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in

the fair value reserve in equity.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

e

e (d) Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
£

fﬁ (iii) Group companies

(s

o~
T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the

date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized

as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign operations
and of borrowings are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognized in the

income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(iii)  Group companies (Cont'd)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period

in which they are incurred.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery R

Facility equipment X HERR

Motors vehicles Y

Furniture, fixtures and RE RKER
office equipment MNERME

Leasehold improvement HEEERRE T

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(g)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in income

statement.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(f)

Intangible assets

(i)

Gooawill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount

of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the

business combination in which the goodwill arose.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(f)

Intangible assets (Cont'd)

(ii)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalized
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised

over their estimated useful lives of five to eight years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognized as an
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated
with the production of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group, and that will probably
generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond
one year, are recognized as intangible assets. Direct
costs include the software development employee

costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets — loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as in trade and other receivables

in the balance sheet (Note 2(j)).
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(i)

)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognized in

the income statement.

AN

2 =

(i)

o

EESBE®

E‘I_'

FEEKXARAIERFERE
RRIKE SRR o BANER A A
FIEEE c M mRERMD
WK ABERETRA - R
B BHEEAL  HMEERKX
REAEERTERRESR
SERN) BETBEEEEK
R AERFEBENRBEEDR
BERHEEEE - RERN

FE 2 R 5K B2 L A P LK

JRE M B 0 e L At P LR A P 4R
NEER - HRRAERA
FORBHERA - REREEE
AE - WEEBRBRBRRASE
1] 35 2K BEAR 15 e Wi AR 3k ) IR BT
UL R FT A B HIROE - BlE
5% B MR BR R % L A W R B R
BFELEE - HEBABRE
RNEBREE - B AEEREE
HEEE - AR REIER
B B ERE KRR ER
BN BReBEREEREE
HEAEFARRRERERERH
RN REMERNER -
BeeBER RaRAER -

125 CSMC TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION

EBHELENRERD A



2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(k)

0

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within

borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of

tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity

holders.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability, including
fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and
dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognized in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m) Borrowings (Cont'd)

(n)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the

liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability

is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(o)

Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution plans in the
PRC and Hong Kong. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. The Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The contributions are recognized
as employee benefit expense when they are due and
are not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund

or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Details of the Group’s employee retirement benefits are

set out in Note 34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r &

i 2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 FEEFTEE®

e _

2 (0) Employee benefits (Cont'd) EERA (&)

&Y

fﬂ (i) Share-based compensation (ii) LR HEEET

& The Group operates equity-settled and share-based REBRBEURNMEE
compensation plans. The fair value of the employee R AR 9 /& B 5
services received in exchange for the grant of the B0 5T & o BEE B TR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

shares is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the shares granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of shares that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of shares that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the shares are issued

under the plan.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(p)

Provision

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise
lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognized for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations

may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of

time is recognized as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is

recognized as follows:

(i)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognized when a Group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectibility of the

related receivables is reasonably assured.

The Group uses accumulated experience to estimate

and provide for such returns at the time of sale.

(i) Sales of services

Sales of services are recognized in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered, by reference
to completion of the specific transaction assessed on
the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion

of the total services to be provided.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(q)

()

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is

recognized using the original effective interest rate.

(iv) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive

payment is established.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached

conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended

to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are recognized in the
income statement on a straight line basis over the expected

lives of the related assets.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(s)

(®)

(u)

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease.

Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products) are recognised as
intangible assets when it is probable that the project will be
a success considering its commercial and technological
feasibility, and costs can be measured reliably. Other
development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognized as an expense are
not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.
Development costs with a finite useful life that have been
capitalised are amortised from the commencement of the
commercial production of the product on a straight-line basis
over the period of its expected benefit, not exceeding five

years.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company’s shareholders.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s Finance
Department under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Group’s Finance Department identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s
operating units. The Board provides principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest-rate risk, credit risk

and investment of excess liquidity.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

(@) Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(i)  Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising mainly
from future commercial transactions primarily with

respect to the United State dollar.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations in the PRC is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated in the

relevant foreign currencies.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities
price risk or commodity price risk as it does not
held investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets or as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. In addition, a predetermined maximum

credit limit and term have been set for each customer.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group’s Finance Department aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed

credit lines available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RAR M A

at

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

e

e (@) Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

oS

fﬁ (iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(s

{;

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest

rates.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed

rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

(b) Fair value estimation

The nominal value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES,
ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2(f). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use

calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.

Had the pre-tax discount rate applied to discounted cash
flow been different from the management’s estimate, the
Group might result in different estimation of goodwill

impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &
-

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, 4 EES:i{4st BEEH
ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd) =)

(b) MER#B[H T HFH

2

(b) Useful lives of plant and machinery

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & Bf #& ) & M 5

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives for its production plant and machinery. The estimate is
based on the expected lifespan of those plant and machinery.
It could change as a result of technical innovation in response
to industry cycles. Management will increase/decrease the
depreciation expense where useful lives are less/more than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been

abandoned or sold.

Were the actual useful lives of the plant and machinery to
differ by 10% from management’s estimate, the carrying
amount of the plant and machinery as at 31 December 2005
would differ by approximately US$4,975,000.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES,

ASS

(c)

5 SAL

UMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair
value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in the income statement when there is objective

evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing
status and the likelihood of collection. Following the
identification of doubtful debts, the responsible sales
personnel discuss with the relevant customers and report on
the recoverability. Specific allowance is made for trade

receivables that are unlikely to be collected.

ES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Sales HERE
6-inch wafer 6 I & [E
Mask making HERLE

4 EBEEGIMAEF > BREREH
T ()
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- 5 SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5 HEEKIEEM®
R
e Primary reporting format — geographical segments FTEERKA-HESE
&
Zn An analysis by geographical segments, as determined by location RREREFMEMETE < HE D
e of ultimate customers, is as follows: ST
2
=z
= 2005
=
% Cost of
g Sales goods sold Gross profit
g SHEMH SHE A EF
T
a US$’000 US$’°000 US$’°000
'_
S FEx FEx TERT
2
% The PRC H 52,982 (46,932) 6,050
; Asia, other than the PRC M (REIRRSH) 15,194 (16,909) (1,715)
5 United States EJe 5,637 (3,931) 1,706
'_
@ Europe B 4,286 (3,730) 556
5
=
78,099 (71,502) 6,597
2004
Cost of

Sales  goods sold  Gross profit

HERE HERA E7

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTXT FTXT FTET

The PRC e 46,854 (32,299) 14,555
Asia, other than the PRC M (FPEIBRSN) 20,900 (16,193) 4,707
United States e 5,571 (4,405) 1,166
Europe B 6,535 (4,109) 2,426

79,860 (57,008) 22,854
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing

costs and administrative expenses are analyzed as follows:

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Employee benefit expense
(Note 13)
Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress
Raw materials and
consumables used
Operating lease expenses
on land use right
Transportation
Operating lease expenses on
factory premises and offices
Loss (gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Impairment charges for property,
plant and equipment
Impairment charges for goodwill

Provision (reversal of provision) on

inventories to net realizable value

Provision of doubtful receivables

Auditors’ remuneration

ME - BE K
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EMEEAX
HERA HERMIGHERKA R
THERFESHNERITAT
2005 2004
US$’000 US$'000
SFEEm TEx
22,559 14,814
277 85
10,858 10,039
3,400 4,693
19,188 25,073
13 13
679 794
1,474 1,327
22 @)
48 1,630
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525 (7)
1,185 182
157 103
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

# 7 OTHER GAINS - NET 7 HftiWrsm FE
®
i 2005 2004
&Y
- US$000 US$'000
& SFES F=T
2
g Interest income MBEUWA 172 185
E Subsidy income — refund of RN A — R ER
g value-added tax ("VAT") @ (T8fER:]) BB 749 3,751
§ Others, net H fth)F5E 437 (15)
<t
P
5 1,358 3,921
,g
g (@)  According to relevant PRC rules and regulations, CSMC Technologies (a) MREBEE@EPEVEMIRER  AQA
o Fab 1 Co., Ltd. (“Fab 1”), the Company’s only operating subsidiary R R — R BN B A Bl G
5 in the PRC, being a qualified manufacturer of micro-electronics B EEYERERAF ([—RK])
:é products, is entitled to refund of VAT from 1 July 2000 to 31 March W AAROME FERRER
i 2005. Since 1 January, 2002, the net VAT payables related to domestic AR_ZEETFLA—ARE_Z
lg sales were firstly paid to the tax bureau and any portion in excess of TRFE=A=+—HILEREIEE
3% of domestic sales would be refunded. The Group’s VAT refund e BT _F—A—HE—K
for the year ended 31 December 2005 amounted to approximately BERMEBZNEBANEELNE
US$749,000 (2004: US$3,751,000). Such VAT refund has been HEERFEE - BERIGEREAH
recorded on cash basis. FE3% AN EIEARE - REE A,
ZE-EERF+ZRA=T—HIF
EH G ERR K AIET749,000%E T
(ZZZ W4 : 3,751,000k 7T) °
ZILEREHBIRR S EEDE -
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 BEMA
2005 2004
US$°’000 US$'000
FER F=T
Interest expense on bank loans RITEFF B 1,616 992
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is incorporated under the Companies Law (2003
Revision) of Cayman Islands and is not subject to taxation in

Cayman Islands.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there was no

assessable profit earned in or derived from Hong Kong.

The Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) on the taxation income as reported
in their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with relevant
PRC income tax laws. The general applicable EIT rate is 33%.
However, being located in the “Old Urban Area of Coastal Open
Economic Zone”, CSMC Technologies Fab 1 Co., Ltd. (“Fab 17),
the only operating subsidiary of the Group in the PRC, is entitled to
a preferential EIT rate of 24%. Furthermore, in accordance with
the PRC “Law of Enterprise Income Tax for Enterprise with Foreign
Investment”, Fab 1 is also entitled to full exemption from EIT for the
first two years and a 50% reduction in EIT for the next three years,
commencing from the first profitable year after offsetting all tax
losses carried forward from previous five years. Moreover, since
Fab 1 also qualifies as an “advanced-technology enterprise”, it is
further entitled to a 50% reduction in EIT for an additional three

years. The first profitable year of Fab1 was 1999.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RAR M A

9

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

The amount of taxation (credited) charged to the consolidated

income statement represents:

Current income tax BITREH
— PRC taxation — BT RE
— Reversal of over-accrued EIT @  —RE Z AR ERTSR

Deferred income tax (Note 18)

EIEFSHE (FHEE18)

In April 2005, Fab1 received approval from the PRC National
Administration of Taxation to be classified as an encouraged
technology intensive foreign investment enterprise with foreign
investment in excess of US$30,000,000. As a result, from 1 January
2004 onwards, Fab 1 enjoys a preferential EIT rate of 15%. However,
according to PRC “Law of Enterprise Income Tax for Enterprise with
Foreign Investment”, the minimum EIT rate applicable to a foreign
investment enterprise is 10%, and therefore although Fab 1 can enjoy
50% reduction in EIT for the years ended 31 December 2004 to
2006, Fab 1 is still subject to 10% EIT rate. Accordingly, EIT previously
over-accrued on a rate of 12% of approximately US$279,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2004 was reversed to reflect the

preferential EIT rate of 10%.

9 FIBHBEX®@

BirelmEk GEA) MR HHIE S
HiE ¢
2005 2004
US$°000 US$'000
SFES F=7T
— 1,673
(279) —
(87) (278)
(366) 1,395
(a) RZZTETRFMA @ —KKE+

BRBHERBOIE - 15 EAE
& 83i83,0008 3 7t /) X 5 B £ i
HERSNEIRE R - At - B=
TTNFE—A—Bf — Wy
TS ZE16%HEEF X - R
il - ARBREINEGRE REMF
BEl - INERECENDERME
P RRIEKAE10% * FTA - BER—
BREE—ZTNEFE_TTF
TZA=+—RALFENLEMS
TS0 % R S+ — BRANZEHE10% /)
EMEHRBEGMNTIE - BEZ
TZNFE+_A=+—HLEEE
BER12%Z R 2 EEMBHL
/279,000 0 B R B - DA MR
10% M EFMESHERB X -
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10

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

The tax on the Group’s (loss) profit before tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the enacted tax rates of

the home country of the respective companies now comprising

the Group as follows:

(Loss) profit before tax

Tax calculated at tax rates
applicable to respective
companies that comprising
the Group

Effect of tax losses for which no
deferred income tax asset
was recognised

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes

Recognition of deferred tax

assets previously not recognized

Reversal of over-accrued EIT

Tax expense

BRBET (B51R) A

1238 FA B4R
REEE A AN
B BRI

I ERERETRT
PRISIREE
MREERNTE

BRI BIREUA

AT

PR ST AL EAERR
HEIETR IR A B
BEZ e EMEH

AEFI X

(LOSS) PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with

in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
US$1,235,000 (2004: profit of US$5,067,000).

9 FIBEHEAX®@

A

@
MAEBERRT AT (B 8) &N e 18 f
S
HEERRKAKASEEN S QALK .
<a

BHE BT B B 02 %

7

=

[11]

AL 2004 =

'_

<

US$’000 US$'000 Z

_ =

<C

=

(7,208) 11,566 =

L

£

)

-

(@]

(2]

Pz

o

(&)

(10}

i

(554) 1,689 =

}_

n

(11}

}_

(@]

=
(77) (464)
31 171
— (278)
(279) -
(366) 1,395

10 RNARERFEAEMN (&6
18) & A

RABHERFE ABEEAR R E
8 /41,235,000% 7T (2004 : % F
5,067,000%7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

i 11 (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 1M 8K (EE) &R
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic (loss) earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BRER (BE) BF TRAR
(loss) profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by AR A AEN (BR) & A
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BR DA SE B 21T B R AR A InE
during the year. FHEETE -
2005 2004

(Loss) profit attributable to AR BIEZFE AR
equity holders of the (E18) %A
Company (US$'000) (F=71) (6,842) 10,171

Weighted average number B Z1TEBARAY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & Bf #& ) & M 5

of ordinary shares INEEF5 2

in issue ('000) (FH) 2,646,935 2,023,855
Basic (loss) earnings per BREXR (BE)

share (US cent per share) &R (FARZEA) (0.26) 0.50
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11 (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has only one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: shares to be issued under the Equity
Incentive Plan (Note 33). The calculation is done to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding share. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming

the exercise of the right of subscription.

Profit attributable to equity ZiN/NGT Y
holders of the Company wmA (FFEIT)
(US$'000)

Weighted average number B &1TEERA
of ordinary shares in INHEFE5 2K
issue ('000) (F8)

Adjustments for Equity i1 22 E T &

Incentive Plan ('000) FHE ()
Weighted average number of &8 Z 7|

B R AR hnE
FHE (FR)

ordinary shares for diluted

earnings per share ('000)

Diluted earnings per share ~ ERHESEZE R
(US cent per share) (FARZEAL)

11 R (B8) BF @
(b) #%

BREERF DERRKREER
PMEBEBELBRERNBR
T RABRESHTEBRAM
BFHEEE - ARBEEA—
BEEANEEEETEE AR : R
R BREET &) (P EE33) K T
BTG - OB TIRE
ERTRMOAMERBENE
KEE BATEEEASR
REIBMFHERERMDD
B)ATHBENBROBEBE
E o N EFFEMRDEE TR
RRITEREEMZE TR
BB -

2004

10,171

2,023,855

145,999

2,169,854

0.47

b =

a 1%

73

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47
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Bt % % & K

A
(=)

4
T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

11 (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont'd)

(b)

Diluted (Cont’d)

No diluted loss per share for 2005 has been presented as
the potential ordinary shares resulted from the Equity Incentive

Plan are anti-dilutive.

12 PROFIT APPROPRIATIONS

(a)

(b)

Dividends

The dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 2005
and 2004 were US$1,705,000 (US$0.00064 per share) and
US$1,338,000 (US$0.0001 per share), respectively. The
directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2005.

LIRS
ERREE

Pre-listing dividends
Final, paid

Statutory reserve funds

The laws and regulations of the PRC require CSMC
Technologies Fab 1 Co., Ltd. (“Fab 1”), the Company’s only
operating subsidiary in the PRC, to provide for certain
statutory funds which are appropriated from profit for the year
(based on its statutory accounts) after offsetting any prior

years’ losses but before dividend distribution.

11

12

B (B8) Z2F @

(b) #% (@)

R AR TR B0 EE Y
ARARBEYE HUEZF|=
TERENERBEESE -

iz A 2 Fe
(a) RE

\BE-_ZTRAFR-ZTTMF+
A=+ BLEFEAINHNRKRE
2 R1/1,705,000% 7T (£ A20.00064
F7T) }&1,338,0003 7t (F%0.0001
ET) c EETRBRNEZE_ZT
AFF+-_A=+—HLEFEHNR

B o
B

=

2005 2004
US$’000 US$'000
FTER FTxT
— 1,338

1,705 1,677
1,705 3,015

(b) ZFELAEE
FEERRERREARRR
B M — S E B AR &S
EHLELERBRAR([—
B RHEETEEES @ &F
HEeBFAEMBREMREFE
1BE R HI R BB 20 TR 0 )4 A 20
FE(RBEZERR) -
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a

i N 73 B (s
EEAES (B

12 PROFIT APPROPRIATIONS (Cont'd) 12

(b) Statutory reserve funds (Cont'd) (b)

According to relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, Fab
1, being a wholly-owned foreign enterprise, is required to
provide for (i) “reserve fund” and (ii)“staff and workers’ bonus
and welfare fund”. It is required to allocate at least 10% of its
net profit after tax to the “reserve fund” until the balance of
such fund has reached 50% of its registered capital while
the appropriation to the “staff and workers’ bonus and welfare

fund” is at the discretion of Fab 1's board of directors.

These funds are created for specific purposes. The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
The staff and workers’ bonus and welfare fund can only be
used for collective welfare of the subsidiaries’ employees and
assets acquired through this fund shall not be taken as Fab

1’s assets.

Under generally accepted accounting principles in Hong
Kong, appropriations to the staff and workers’ bonus and
welfare fund have been included as expenses and the
balance of the fund has been accounted for as a liability of

the Group.

No appropriation has been made for the year ended 31
December 2005 as Fab 1 had incurred a loss during the
year. In 2004, appropriations of US$1,023,000 and
US$1,023,000 were made to reserve fund and enterprise

expansion fund, respectively.

REREEEG KA - —
BIERINEBERE - ARLI)
[REEE S R (i) (B TR &
BNESIBE  UEAGER
ﬁ@@ﬂmﬁmm%ﬂmﬁ
[REESIN EEZES
@%Lﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁs’qw%ﬁm ,

i Be 2 [ B T 22 E) K 4@ A &
INMBHAB-—BHNESE
BB RTE ©

An_r\ﬂ

ZEESRFHREMRTE
fﬁﬁﬁﬁé—fﬁﬁx SERER

MR - BREE R EE
HIBIMNE A o B T 528 A& 7
HEeETRAELRAHNBAREER
MHFRF - AEESAEN
BETREFE—"BNEE -

[ B T 228 I A M & & P F &Y
DEE EREBEE-—RLRE
SHRAGIRAFAN - MESH
BHRADIRSAEENEE -

HR—BREE
A=+t BLHEEHRE
B MERTEELSER - R
—ZTTMF - H5IHF1,023,000
7T 1% 1,023,000% T2 B T f##
BESROEBRRES -

A B sk R KA

A\
(=)

AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #: & Bt #& 3R & M &

# 13 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 13 EERAIGTE

=

e

& 2005 2004
&

=

Z:[\[ US$’000 US$'000
% FEx FE=7x
2

é Wages and salaries TERF® 8,277 7,864
':'.EJ Shares granted to directors RTEER

= = L[/

2 and employees BTG,

o (Note 33) (MI3E33) 1,453 1,171
% Pension costs — defined RIKERA—AE

a contribution plans HE 1,128 1,004
<

o

e 10,858 10,039
=z

o]

o

L

T

'_

o

'_

(9]

=

o)

=z
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14 DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS

(a)

AND MANAGEMENT’S

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31

December 2005 is set out below:

Executive:

Dr. Chen Cheng-Yu, Peter
Mr. Lee Nail, Robert

Mr. Tsai Nein-Nan

Non-executive:

Mr. Ong Thiam Kin
Mr.Yu Yu

Dr. Chen Nan Xiang

Mr. Paul P. Wang®

Mrs. Oon Kum Loon

Mr. Hsue Chi Nan, Mark
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema

#11EE:
REFEL
FTERL
EBmrL

FHHfTES
TRREE

AFE

REAEL
FHamkE
BeERL

Ralph Sytze Ybera 54

14 EEREEEWNS

(a) EEM=
BE_TTAFt_A=1+—
HIEEESESEOHMSEHTI M
™~

Compensation

Employer's  for loss of

contribution office as

to pension director

Discretionary  Inducement Other scheme EEH
Fees Salary  bonuses fees  benefits” Bk Bz TOTAL
ne He& O MBRL 0 MEME  REERY  HEER  BERE @it
(US1000) (US§'000) (US1000) (US§'000) (US§'000) (US$1000) (US§'000) (US$1000)
(Fxm)  (F570) (Tx7) (Tx70) (Fx7) (Tx70) (Tx70) (Tx70)
64 90 — — 108 - — 262
67 134 16 - 85 - — 302
8 138 28 - 78 — — 247
2 - - - - - - 12
10 - - - - - - 10
8 - - - - - - 8
4 - - - - - - 4
% - - - - - - %
2 - - - - - - 2
% - - - - - - %

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

14 DIRECTORS’ AND MANAGEMENT’S 14 EEREEEMS »

n

E EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

4

§ (a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a) EEM<E @

{iE The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 HE_ZTTZNF+_A=1+—

E December 2004 is set out below: HIEFEESEESOMSEHTIM

% Employer's

% contribution Compensation

g topension for loss of

i scheme office as

@ Discretionary  Inducement Other L director

é Fees Salary  bonuses fees  benefits® &g Bz TOTAL

§ Be He O MBEL 0 mEME  REEAY  HEER  BERE @it

§ (T7) (F7m) (T7) (F7m) (T7) (T£7m) (T4 (T£7m)

z (USS00)  (USS000)  (USSO0D)  (USS00D)  (USS000)  (USS00)  (USSD0O)  (USS00O)

)

i Execuive: HiTEZ:

§ Dr.Chen Cheng Yu, Peter ~ REFEL 12 150 1 - 74 = = 407
. Lee Nail, Robert EhERA 8 195 119 - 69 - - 47
. Tai Nein Nan -4 %0 154 8 - 3% - - 36
Non-execuive: FiHfTES
M. Ong Thiam Kin TS 8 - - - - - = 8
M Yu Yu AFRE 6 - - - - - - 6
Dr. Chen Nan Xiang RamEL 5 = = = = = — 5
Mrs. Oon Kum Loon ik LN 16 = = = = = - 16
Mr. Hsug ChiNan, Mark ~ 3F&Hi%A 14 - - - - = = 14
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze Ybema £ 16 — — — — — — 16
M. James Ferguson Pator®®  James Ferguson Paton 7249 - - — - — - — -
Mr. David Chow® David Chow 74 - - - - - - - -
Ms. Loh YiWang, Laurg®  Loh Yi Wang, Laure X1 - - — - — - — -
Mr. Sai Chak Mak® Sai Chak Mak 75 - - — - — - — -

Mr. Chun Yao Yang, Paul®  Chun Yao Yang, Paul 7249 - = = = - — _ _
M. Song Hwee Chia® Song Hwee Chia 4% _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
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14 DIRECTORS’ AND MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

Notes:

(1) Other benefits include share-based payment, housing and

other allowances.

(2)  Appointed on 5 July 2005.

(3) Resigned on 8 May 2004.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, none of the
directors waived any emoluments or has agreed to waive

2005 emoluments.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, approximately
18,003,000 shares of the Company were allocated to the
directors under the “Equity Incentive Plan” (Note 33). Among
these shares allocated, approximately 7,341,000 shares have

been vested and issued as of 31 December 2005.

14 EEREEEME &)

(a)

BEEME ©)

M3 -

(1) HEFSEERBG M
K EBEREMER -

B R-_ZTWNFAANEH

o

[

REEZ_ZTTRFE+=_A=+
—HIEFE  MEEAEERK
EXMMekRAERE_SZT
AEME o

RBZE-_TTNF+-_A=+
—BLEFE  ARARRER
5@ &) (FT3E33) MEE
2 HBE#4918,003,0008 /% {5 © F£
ZEIEHROEFR - HPL
7,341,000t BN —FZE R
F+-ZA=+—HEEXKGE
R E BT o

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

n

14 DIRECTORS’ AND MANAGEMENT’S 14 EEREEEMS »

e EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

e

. (b) Five highest paid individuals (b) AEBBEHMAL

qa -

*% The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in FR - AEEN AL &= 5

» the Group for the year include three (2004: three) directors ALBE=%2(ZEZTNWF :

=z

4 whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented —HR)ES - HME R EXFAT

L

5 above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2004: Z5H 5T R TR o A F

2 two) individuals during the year are as follows: N TME(ZEZTMFE : W

g Z)BEBHEMALHOMS 0

: T

o

m

S 2005 2004

-

o)

% US$°000 US$'000

0 TEx F=rx

T

g Basic salaries and allowances EARF & KHas 289 343

"'nc—; Bonuses TEAL 24 217

= Consultancy fee sk 59 97
372 657
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14 DIRECTORS’ AND MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$128,000)

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately
US$192,000)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to approximately
US$256,410)

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to approximately
US$320,513)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately
US$384,615)

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
(equivalent to approximately
US$448,718)

< &=
ZZ 1,000,000 T
(#9%H 128,000 E7T)
1,000,001 JETE
1,500,000 7T
(#9%H 192,000 E7T)
1,500,001 #BILE
2,000,000 77T
(#9551 256,410 &7T)
2,000,001 BLE
2,500,000 77T
(#9551 320,513 %7T)
2,500,001 BLE
3,000,000 # 7T
(#9551 384,615 %7T)
3,000,001 BLE
3,500,000 77T
(#9551 448,718 L)

14 EEREEREME @)

(b) AEREHMAL (®

e FLATEE :

Number of individuals

A
2005 2004
US$°000 US$'000
FEx F=x
1 S
1 1
— 1
2 2

A

¥R B =

Bt %

A
(=)

=)
T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

# 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 M3 - WMERRE
=
e
% Group RE
¥R
= Furniture,
qa .
% fixtures
o and office
pod equipment Leasehold
E Facility Motor #%E+  Improvement Construction-
% Machinery  equipment vehicles RER HEEE  in-progress Total
2 He BVET RE  BAERRE BRIE ERIR fag
O
g US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TS TE£n TE£n TE£n TE£n TE£n TE£n T£n
o
5 Cost BA&
—
3
Z As at 1 January RZTT=%
3 2004 +-R=1+-H 48,137 7,096 359 1,684 — 37,437 94,713
E Additions AE 104 — 255 496 — 70,749 71,604
e}
'(7) Transfers Ep ] 54,263 6,757 — — — (61,020) —
”.C_)J Disposals il (650) - (12) (147) - - (809)
z
At 31 December RZZZME
2004 +-A=+-H 101,854 13,853 602 2,033 — 47,166 165,508
Additions AE 4,494 353 — 2,238 — 33,495 40,580
Transfers Ep ] 31,681 — — — 1,951 (35,138) (1,506)
Disposals HE (4) — (19) (85) — — (108)
Translation adjustments ERAE 2470 347 15 185 - 1,160 41477
As at 31 December it k3
2005 +=A=1-H 140,495 14,553 598 4371 1,951 46,683 208,651
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A

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 15 V¥ - BERRERE @)

>

Group (Cont'd) REBR &) E
¥

Furniture, &=

fixtures fﬁ

and office -

equipment Leasehold

Facility Motor B+ Improvement Construction-
Machinery  equipment vehicles EER HEEE  in-progress Total
Ha RiERAE RE  BAERRE BRI EBIR ag
US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

TET TET TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Accumulated depreciation ZiHTER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and impairment HE
As at 1 January e

2004 —-A-H 10,116 1,133 113 521 — — 11,883
Depreciation expense FERY 13,735 678 74 327 — — 14,814
Impairment expense FERT 1,630 = = = = = 1,630
Disposals e (694) = 1) (89) = = (784)
At31 December jj e 3

2004 +-A=1+-H 24,787 1811 186 759 — — 27,543
Depreciation expense FERY 20,150 1,668 89 505 147 — 22559
Impairment expense RERY 48 — — — — — 48
Disposals e (1) = (6) (50) — — (57)
Translation adjustments ERAE 814 45 6 166 1 — 1,032
As at 31 December i mbe 3

2005 +ZRA=1-H 45,798 3,524 275 1,380 148 - 51,125
Net book value REFE
At 31 December W=BE1f

2005 +=A=1+-H 94,697 11,029 323 2,991 1,803 46,683 157,526
At 31 December e

2004 +=A=1+-H 77,067 12,042 416 1274 — 47166 137,965
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &
-

15 Y% - BMERRE @

2

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

e

= Group (Cont'd) AEE @)

&Y

ff Depreciation expense of US$22,025,000 (2004: US$14,346,000) PrERM S H22,025,000F T (ZFF
(s

=)
T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47

has been expensed in cost of goods sold, US$19,000 (2004:
US$17,000) in selling and marketing costs, US$455,000 (2004
US$395,000) in administrative expenses and US$60,000 (2004:
US$56,000) in research and development expenses (2004: Nil).

Lease rentals amounting to US$1,474,000 (2004: US$1,327,000)
relating to the lease of factory premises and offices are included in

the income statement.

Certain bank borrowings are secured on machineries with a net
book value of approximately US$11,436,000 (2004: Nil) (Note 25).

Construction-in-progress mainly comprises building under

construction and machinery and equipment pending installation.

PO4F : 14,346,000 7T) X $H1EHE
XA~ 19,000 T (ZZETWEF -
17,0003 7T) X SH1ESHE R 5 H &
s » 455,000E L (ZEZTWF :
395,000% 7T) X HIETHE A K
60,000% 7t (ZZ TP 4 : 56,000)
XEERBBR(ZSETNEF -
z) .

EREAEAAEABMERPEAE S 5
1,474,000 T (ZZEZ I F :
1,327,000% ) MR KERA
/H.Eo

BREE(E ) A11,436,0003F JTHY #4238
REMABSHRETERNERY (=
TEEF « F) (aE25) ©

ERTREIEZEREZTNETR
BREZEOMEREE -
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 15 W% WMERRZE@® =
e

Company ¥ N/NE] e
®

Construction 1-?

(s

-in-progress &

EEIR 2

- Z

L

US$000 =

'_

FET s

2

Cost and net book value AR IR E R E S
<C

Z

As at 1 January 2004 RZZEZTWFE—A—H 128 E
Additions ANE 22,505 <
Disposals k= (14,200) g
5

As at 31 December 2004 R-_ZZEMOF+_HA=+—H 8,433 i
Additions =T 245 :c:>
Disposals e (8,678) ‘é’
—_— o)

=

As at 31 December 2005 R-EZRFE+=-A=1+—H —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &
-

i 16 LAND USE RIGHTS 16 =+ HbfFE A
e
= 2005 2004
R
=
- US$'000 US$/000
% FEx FET
o
é Beginning of year F7) 554 567
E Amortization of prepaid NS EEE
e . e
2 operating lease payment 15 SRk 8 (13) (13)
o Translation adjustments JE N SR 13 —
=
Lé End of year FR 554 554
5
8]
—
§ The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating EEER T ERENERIEER
3 lease payments and their net book value are analysed as follows: KEMENRREREEE - 947
L
E W
o
l_
(9]
“.C_)J 2005 2004
Pz
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Outside Hong Kong: BELAGN -
With remaining lease period of 47 years & NHHI 47 4 554 554
Certain bank borrowings are secured on land use rights with a net BRTEF {8 A 554,000 7T By £+ #0(F A
book value of US$554,000 (2004: Nil) (Note 25). BERBHBRITERNERY (ZF

T F) (MfEE25) -
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS BIFEEE -
i
Computer o
Goodwill software Total S
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
F=T FET FET &
=z
Cost 2% %
As at 1 January 2004 R-—ZEZEMF—H—H 264 197 461 5
Additions nE — 527 527 @
i:
As at 31 December 2004 R-ETNE+=—A=+—H iz(’
— As previously reported — IR AR IR 264 724 988 =
— Prior year adjustment — FERAE a
(Note 2(a)) (Pt 2(a)) (53) — (53) '<O_t
o
As at 31 December 2004 RZZTZWFE—HA—H 211 724 935 §
- restated — K& 9
Additions NE — 2,028 2,028 i
Translation adjustments B R — 18 18 5
}_
As at 31 December 2005 R-BZ2HF+-A=1+—H 211 2,770 2,981 @
o)
=
Accumulated amortization Rt B HERRE
and impairment
As at 1 January 2004 R-_ZTZWF—/F—H 26 40 66
Amortization expense BRI 27 58 85
As at 31 December 2004 RZZZWMFE+=—A=+—H
— As previously reported — 1RSI R 53 98 151
— Prior year adjustment —EFEHFE
(Note 2(a)) (FF5E 2(a)) (53) — (53)
As at 31 December 2004 AR EPEF T H =+ —H
- restated — &5 — 98 98
Amortization expense HIHFAY — 277 277
Impairment expense SBUERT L 211 — 211
Translation adjustments R — 4 4
As at 31 December 2005 R-EZERF+-A=+—H 211 379 590
Net book value BREFE
As at 31 December 2005 R=ZZBRF+=H=+—H — 2,391 2,391
As at 31 December 2004 R_ZTZMFE+_A=+—8H 211 626 837
Amortisation of US$277,000 (2004: US$85,000) is included in 277,000% 7T (ZZ T M4 : 85,0003

T BHEN B ERATHA AR -

administrative expenses in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

The gross movement on the deferred income tax assets account

is as follows:

As at 1 January
Additions

Translation adjustments

As at 31 December

Wt+—-—A=+—H

18 ELEFIEHEE

BEEFMGHEENZEFBOT ¢

—

2005 2004
US$’000 US$000
FXR T=ET
278 —

87 278

14 —

379 278

FA BEEHREEERBENED
(W ARET AR R SRR BLARE R A AR

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year,

without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: EREE) AT
Provisions on assets Tax losses Total
BERE RBEE ko)
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000

S FEL Txn FEL TxR FEL

As at 1 January “—HA—H 278 — — — 278 —
(Debited) Credited (8%) /FTA

to income statement Wiams (1) 278 88 — 87 278
Translation adjustments ER AR 14 - — - 14 =
As at 31 December W+=A=+—H 291 278 88 — 379 278
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18

19

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (Contd)

The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:

Deferred tax assets to be HREa+T =A%
recovered more than 12 months W Bl FIRER B & B

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognize deferred income tax assets of US$513,000 (2004
US$277,000) in respect of losses amounting to US$3,621,000
(2004: US$1,517,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Losses amounting to US$2,354,000 (2004: US$
Nil) will expire in 2010.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials R #E
Work-in-progress E2M
Finished goods BURK an
Spare parts 1

18 IRIEFIBHEE »)
&

EERBRMEZINERIENATIE
B :

2005 2004
US$’000 US$'000
FXR FT=Er
379 278

REMSHEEDR R IEE BN
EER - ENAAREERBENE
AR N IR RIS R o
NS B I % 1% §8.3,621,0003 7T (=
ZZ VY ¢ 1,517,000%7T) A FBHNE
B %8 ERBIRA K BB HERA
513,000 7T (ZZZ M4 : 277,000
ETL)NBELEFRGEHEE - €8
2,354,000 7T (ZZTMF : T)H)
BEEER_Z—ZFFH -

19 #&

2005 2004

US$’000 US$'000

FEx TE7

4,167 5,699

7,376 4,453

1,843 1,858

4,486 5,048

17,872 16,553

A

% ¥R & Mt &

B

= A
(=)

AT

TS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

1 19 INVENTORIES (Contd) 19 F&E W
e
= The cost of inventories recognized in costs of goods sold and in BRAMEERARMEEANTFE
f research and development expenses amounted to US$71,667,000 KA &71,667,000€ 0 (ZZFZF MM
- (2004: US$57,671,000). % : 57,671,000%7T) °
20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 ERE SRR K EMERK
3
Group Company
rEE AT
2005 2004 2005 2004

US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FEn TET FEn TET

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR
— third parties - =] 10,091 10,235 — —
— related parties —BEAL
(Note 31) (FFE31) 3,806 5,707 — —
Notes receivables U= 1,368 1,188 — =
15,265 17,130 — —
Less: provision for R PRI
impairment of SR
trade receivables VERIEEE ] (446) (663) — —
Trade receivables EKE S
- net RRTORER 14,819 16,467 — —
Prepayment and TENREIE K
other receivables HAtb YR 2,967 844 748 25
Due from related FEY FAsE A+
parties (Note 31) B (FsE31) 217 783 113,416 103,453
18,003 18,094 114,164 103,478
The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their FEUE 5 AR 3 R E i R R ) & S
carrying value. EEHEREEES
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

21

The majority of the Group’s sales are on letter of credit or documents
against payment. At 31 December 2005 and 2004, the ageing

analysis of the trade receivables was as follows:

0 to 30 days 0Z30H

30 to 90 days 30290 H
90 to 180 days 90 £ 180 H
180 to 360 days 180 2 360 H

There is no major concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers,

internationally dispersed.

The Group has recognized a loss of US$1,185,000 (2004:
US$182,000) for the impairment of its trade receivables during the
year ended 31 December 2005. The loss has been included in the

income statement.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Restricted bank deposits represent pledged deposits placed with
banks as security for certain letters of credit issued by those banks
on behalf of the Group (Note 30) and employee mortgage loans
(Note 35).

20

21

H&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁt’m’]ﬁﬁm’“\*ﬂm—l—

2005 2004

US$’000 US$'000

FER FEL

7,349 8,041

6,889 7,381

753 1,334

274 374

15,265 17,130
R AEENAEES RS
My U R 5 B 3R A S

EERE -

AEEREBEZ-_TETAF T+ A=
T-HIEFEREZ S RKETR
E#321,185,000% T (ZE T F -
182,000 7T) K E 18 - ZEBEER
WK AAER -

X PR # R 1T 17 K

XREIBIOTERSFRNEFITHNE
ERER  FRZFRITRARAE
BE B ETERE (HE30) kE
BRBE R (M aE35) WM m o

A

TR & M &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #: & 8f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

2 22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22 BekBITHEE
Iz
— Group Company
- AEME EON
fE 2005 2004 2005 2004
n US$’000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
i FEx SV FEx T
L
2 ,
e Cash and BTIEE
§ bank deposits FHERRE R
Z denominated in: RITE -
§ Renminbi AR 11,545 6,936 — —
L US$ £57T 12,371 16,417 2,758 1,540
g Others Hih & 862 1,110 264 435
%)
3 24,778 24,463 3,022 1,975
L
i
E Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC and the ARBRPBEVIEEHLBEE -
u'aJ remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to foreign exchange i A B 1) S TE 3k 78 AR B AT BE AN &Y
- restrictions imposed by the PRC government. SVERRBIFTHRE ©
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.72% RHRTEFERNERMER0.72%
(2004: 0.72%). ZZEZFE : 0.72%) °
23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 BA
2005 2004
US$’000 US$'000
FTEx F=rx
Authorised EE
10,000,000,000 (2004: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000 A& = [%
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each [EE 0.1 87T (2004 4F :
10,000,000,000 A% ) 128,205 128,205
Issued and fully paid BEZTRHE
2,677,533,729 (2004 2,616,146,090) 2,677,533,729 B &%
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each B 0.1 87T (2004 4F :
2,616,146,090 %) 34,327 33,540
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A

23 SHARE CAPITAL (Contd) 23 BRAK ()

v
Movement in share capital during the year was as follows: IR E AR EEN AT - %
PR
US$ denominated USS$ denominated HK$ denominated fn
ordinary share preferred shares ordinary share 1
NERTFIEN NETHIERH B I E n
HER BLR HER i
Number Number Number E
of shares Amount of shares Amount of shares Amount 3
RH#E s RAHNE S8 RAHNE o8 5
‘000 US$'000 ‘000 US$'000 ‘000 US$'000 %
Tk TET Tk FET Tk FET =
=
As at 1January 2004 RZZETMF—-A—H 111,800 11 52,200 5 — — o
Dividends satisfied MABRA A a) %
by shares (a) 1,338 — — — — — 8
Issuance of shares ZIIRG 691 - - - - - =
Repurchase and BERAR E
currency re-denomination BERA UBJ
of share capital (b) EHEL () (113,829) (1) (52.200) (5) 1,660,201 21,286 z
Exercise of warrants T RIRIERE
(Note 32) (FizE32) — — — — 271,440 3,480
Issuance of P LR
shares upon listing (c) B (c) — — — — 684,415 8,774
As at 31 December 2004 RZZZWF+=A=+—H — - — — 2,616,146 33,540
Repurchase of shares (d) B (d) — — = = (5,424) (70)
Share issued under the R R EE &
Equity Incentive Plan BITRRG
(Note 33) (Ff#E 33) — — — — 66,812 857
As at 31 December 2005 R-EZRF+-A=1—-H = — — — 2,677,534 34,327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

(a)

In March 2004, the Company declared a dividend of
US$1,338,000 which was satisfied by a bonus issue pursuant
to which a total of 1,338,000 ordinary shares of US$0.0001
each of the Company were allotted and issued by the
capitalisation of the sum of US$133.8 then standing to the

credit of the share premium account of the Company.

On 8 May 2004, 113,829,109 ordinary shares and 52,200,000
preferred shares of US$0.0001 each were repurchased and
1,660,291,090 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were allotted
and issued, credited as fully paid, to the former holders of
such ordinary and preferred shares in exchange therefore

on a pro rata basis.

684,415,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 (equivalent to
approximately US$0.0128) each were issued upon the
Company'’s initial public offering of shares at an issue price
of HK$0.5 (equivalent to approximately US$0.064) each on
13 August 2004, resulting in a share premium of
approximately US$35,098,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Company
purchased 5,424,430 shares in the market for cancellation
for a total consideration of US$285,000.

23 BRAK ()

(a)

RZZEZWF=H ' XRFE
&A% 81,338,000 7T * LAAT F
BAENEN - Bt - KNAA
RELRATERORMDEE
FRER N EE133.8E L EAYL -
R RETAARERAEE
0.00013 7T &A% 1,338,000

B e

RZZEZTMFERANA AR
AIE B&[E1113,829,1090% & J& Ml
E0.0001ETTHEBEKR KR
52,200,0008% & % E {E0.0001
ETHBER - WE M ZATR
EZELTRARRELARNAL
it 2% 1% 3£971,660,291,0900% &
BREE0. 1B THE R L@k
AR EL B A3 Bt BE B AR 1) -

RARRERAFREERMDM
RZZETEMFENA+=AKE
EEER0.5E T (AFHR0.064
FJr) 317 7 684,415,0000 &
PREE0.18 7T (5% 700.0128
ET)NEBER  BHELER
1974 (& 4935,098,000% 7T ©

RBE_ZEFTAF+-_A=+
—HIEFER  ARRMER
285,000 o #E T 1% BE A
5,424,430 AR 0 VEFT 84 o
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24 RESERVES

Group

Balance as at
1 January 2004

Issuance of
warrants (Note 32)

Effect of repurchase and
currency re-denomination
of share capital (Note 23)

Share issuance expenses

Exercise of warrants (Note 32)

Issuance of shares
upon listing (Note 23)
Profitfor the period (before
restatement (Note 2(a))
Apprapriations to statutory
reserves (Note 12(b))
Translation adjustments

Balance as at
1 December 2004
as previously reported

Opening adjustment for
adoption of HKFRS 2
(Note 2(a))

Balance as at

31 December 2004, restated

Implementation of the
Equity Incentive Plan
- vesting
Implementation of the
Equity Incentive Plan
- exercising
Repurchase of
share capital (Note 23)
Loss for the year
Dividend declared
Translation adjustments

Balance as at
31 December 2005

RZTEME
—A-RHks
Tk
(Pr3E32)
BERARERRA
EHEfNYE
(HfzE23)
FRHRET
AR (i 32)
RETREIRG
(P 23)
BnaF (Z5080)
(B3 20a))
AMEEEDES
(BE1210)
EREE

R-ZENE
ToA=1-B8
e BARER

BRI
F2RAHIER
(H3 2)

R-EEME
TZA=t-H &J
Hkh
L TRE]
%5
HiRH
REE
~f1ff
BERA
(P 23)
EREE
BERRE
EXFE

R-%25E
tZR=t-BikER

24 f#1E

rE
Enterprise Cumulative
Equity expansion translation
Share Merger ~ Warrant  compen- Contributed  Reserve fund adjustments  Retained

premium  reserve  reserve  sation  surplus fund £¥8E ZHER  earrings Total
RIEE AHEE EIRE RARE HRBR  RRES Eg #E  RERH ]
US§000  USS000  US$000  USS000  US$000  USS000  US§000  USHOOD  USS000  US§000
TEr TEr TEn TEr TR TER TR TEr TR TER
53,247 34518 - - 2,03 1513 1513 10 2375 95,211
— — 17,400 — — — - - - 17,400
(21,270) - - - - - - - - (21210)
(7,433) - - - - — — — — (7,433)
13,920 —  (17:400) - - — — — — (3,480)
35,09 — — — — — — — — 35,098
- - - - - - - - 1,342 11,342

— — — — — 1,023 1,023 — (2046) —

— — — — — — — 5 — 5
73,562 34518 — — 2,03 2,536 2,536 15 "o 126873
- - - 1,11 - - - - (1,171) -
73,562 34518 - 1,17 2,03 2,536 2,536 15 10500 126873
- - - 1453 - - - - - 1453
1287 - - (1,453) - - - - - (166)
(215) - - - - — — — — (15)
— — — — — — — — (6842)  (6842)
_ _ — — = — = - (1,705)  (1,705)

= = = = = = = 3219 = 3219
74,634 34518 - 1,11 2,035 2,536 2,536 3,204 1,953 122,677

A

R & BT =

#

NI
iR B H7r T/%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &
-

- 24 RESERVES (Contd) 24 @%@
e
& Company NN |
§ (Accumulated
Xt losses) retained
& Share Merger Warrant Equity earnings
9 premium reserve reserve Compensation (Rt i) Total
z B EE AORR ERAR BRAHE REBRH fag
E US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
% FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL TEL
2 Balance as at RTEMF
9 1 January 2004 —A—BtEH 53,247 34,518 - - (501) 87264
2 Issuance of warrants (Note 32) BTRREE (FE32) = = 17,400 = — 17,400
= Repurchase and currency BORAREERA
fa .
i re-denomination of ot Aot
S share capital (Note 23) (FitzE 23) (21,270) - - - - (21,270)
o Share issuance expenses FRHER (7.433) = = = = (7,433)
Z Exercise of warrants (Note 32) IfERREE (FE32) 13,920 = (17,400) = = (3,480)
= Issuance of shares R EFRETRG
o upon listing (Note 23) (i3 23) 35,098 = = = = 35,098
'c_> Profit for the year FRRT — — — — 5,067 5,067
l_
@ Balance as at RZTTME
Q 31 December 2004 +-A=t-H
~as previously reported MEEeR - RERRR 73562 34518 — — 4,566 112,646
Opening adjustment RNERHRALER
for adoption of HKFRS 2 F 2 A ERE
(Notes 2(a)) (3% 2(a)) — — = 1171 (1,171) =
Balance as at RZFTME+=A=1—H
31 December 2004, restated e - E31 73,562 34518 = 1171 3395 112,646
Implementation of the TR
Equity Incentive Plan 1Rl
- vesting R — — — 1,453 — 1453
Implementation of the HATRRA
Equity Incentive Plan ]
— exercising ~11f 1,287 = = (1453) = (166)
Repurchase of BERA
share capital (Note 23) (i3 23) (215) = = = = (215)
Loss for the year FREE — — = = (1,235) (1,235)
Dividend declared BEEREKE — — — — (1,705) (1,705)
As at 31 December 2005 R-ZERE+-A=1-H 74,634 34,518 - 1,171 455 110,778
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25 BORROWINGS

25 B E&

a

iR
Group Company T
&
rEH KAFE .
2005 2004 2005 2004 b
US$°000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000 E
FER TET FER S =
<
Non-current = Hf 2
<
Secured (Note 15) BHEH (MIFE15) 9,230 — — — o
=
Current 52 HB é
Secured (Note 15) HEMR (i 15) 3,000 — — — <
Unsecured R 29,922 17,500 5,000 — g
S
32,922 17,500 5,000 — e
o
Total borrowings fEE4E 42,152 17,500 5,000 — o
5
=
As at 31 December 2005, the Group’s long-term and short-term RZEZERF+A=+—H =&
bank loans bore interest at rates ranging from 5.58% to 5.62 % SENRPREHRTERNER

(2004: Nil) per annum and 4.41% to 6.32% (2004: 3.00% to 3.60%)

per annum, respectively.

As at 31 December 2005, the Company’s short-term bank loans
bore interest at 5.54% (2004: Nil) per annum.

RO RN F5.68EEL62B(ZZFE
e ) RANEZREIE(ZEE
PI4 : 3.00EXE3.60E) °

R-EBEETRE+-_RA=+—0 &
NRANEHBETERNFEEX A
5.4E (ZEZMF : £E) o
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“ 25 BORROWINGS (Contd) 25 f&¢
iR

i The exposure of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings to REHE
5 , . "
= interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at the 7| =

AN
(=)

balance sheet date are as follows:

4=
45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #%

6 months or less 7NE A AT
6 to 12 months ~E+TZEA
1to 5 years —EhF
Over 5 years RAEALE
Total borrowings BEMERE

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

Within 1 year —&FR
Between 1 to 2 years —EMF
Between 2 to 5 years MERF

Total borrowings EERE

Group
EE

2005 2004

Company
RATF
2005 2004

US$’000 US$'000
FXr FT=Er

Uss$’000 US$'000
FXr TEIT

20,983 11,500 5,000 =
11,939 6,000 — —

9,230 = — =
42,152 17,500 5,000 =

EENIHAMT

Group
EE

2005 2004

Company
RATF
2005 2004

US$’000 US$000
FXr FT=Er

Us$’000 US$'000
FXr T

32,922 17,500 5,000 =
2,230 — — =
7,000 — = =

42,152 17,500 5,000 =
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25 BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 25 & @

The carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s non-current REBENBEENREEAERAF i‘;
borrowings are as follows: (ER NN i
<O
Carrying amount Fair values &
BREE AFE
2005 2004 2005 2004

US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000
FTER FT=T FTER T=T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Long-term bank loans ~ KHIRITER 9,230 — 9,109 —
The carrying amounts of short-term borrowing approximate their RAEENEEEREE QA FEMR
fair value. A
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEMNEEEDNNTIE. 5
following currencies: fi :

Group Company

PN PN

2005 2004 2005 2004

US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000
FTER T=T FTER TXT

US$ ETT 31,000 17,500 5,000 —
Renminbi AR 11,152 — — —
Total borrowings BE4azs 42,152 17,500 5,000 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

ﬁ 26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 ENESZRRARAEMES
= =h
{E TA
i+
RN
= Group Company
f AEE KAT
o 2005 2004 2005 2004
=z
= US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
< FEx TET FEx T
o
= Trade payables BB SRR
z _ third parties - 15,447 14,402 — —
- — related parties —MEAT
[m)
Z (Note 31) (FfF5E31) 1,183 971 — —
S
5 Notes payables ENEE 1,859 — — —
3
5
8 18,489 18,878 — —
E Advance from customers REIEFIE 1,721 1,321 — =
o
0 Accruals and FEETIEE &
L
5 other payables H b 3R 3,664 3,395 1,019 2,192
Pz
Due to related FERRAZEA T
parties (Note 31) FIE (FsE31) 958 544 589 35
24,832 20,633 1,608 2,227
At 31 December 2005, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade RZEZERF+_A=+—H =&
payables (including amounts due to related parties of trading in SENENESRER (REAESH
nature) was as follows: B R FEA B A T 3RIB) BIBRER D AT
NN
2005 2004
US$°000 US$'000
F5575 FEx
0 to 30 days 0ZE30H 14,351 14,183
30 to 180 days 30& 180 H 3,103 1,170
Over 180 days 180 BHEA E 1,035 20
18,489 18,878
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at

27 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 27 mEBRERER

4 53

b

=

Reconciliation of (loss) profit before taxation to net cash inflow BRELAT (B518) mF R A& & X BT E 5
generated from operations ERIREMA LR f
o
2005 2004
U}_)
US$°000 US$'000 g
FEx FET E
w
(Loss) profit before income tax BRPTISHRRT (E518) &7 (7,208) 11,566 g
Adjustment for: YEHIATIEE SA% - g
Provision for doubtful receivables FEU R AR 1,185 182 =
Provision (reversal of provision) FEEERZ (BEEREE) %
on inventories to net realisable value A B3R FE B 525 (17) o
Depreciation of property, mE - BE& %
plant and equipment BiETE 22,559 14,814 ;
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 277 85 :c:)
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEERE (W) 22 (7) @
Impairment of fixed assets EE B ERE 48 1,630 2
Interest expenses A BFX 1,616 992
Interest income from bank deposits IRITIFE KA F 2 WA (172) (187)
Impairment of goodwill ERE 211 —
Operating lease expenses T AR
on land use rights AL 13 13
Costs of equity incentive plan A& 17 22 EhET EIp A 1,453 1,171
Operating cash flows before LBESEBHAN
working capital changes KRR 20,529 30,242
Increase in long term prepaid expenses ~ =HAITEfIFISE (11) (435)
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,844) (11,540)
Increase in trade and other receivables  FEUREE 5 B8R 71 K2 ELth & Y Z03% i (1,516) (9,691)
Increase in trade and other payables FEIST B 5B 51 I ELAth P A< K38 0 3,763 13,690
Net cash inflow generated K FTEE LR
from operations W RAFE 20,921 22 266
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- 28 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 28 RTBRARNKRE
%; Investments in subsidiaries of the Company comprised: KARRHBRARINEE R :
% 2005 2004
USs$’000 US$'000
Fxn TET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE_ LR - WA 34,527 34,527

AARMHBATRBOT -

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment and Issued and
kind of legal entity fully paid up Attributable
HEMmEEL/ share capital equity interest Principal activities and
Name BIBER/ HEHR BT P15 place of operations
£ ERERESR E PR 5 TEXBREERH
Directly Indirectly
held held
EERE HERE
CSMC Manufacturing British Virgin Islands us$2 100% —  Trading of integrated
Co., Ltd. (“BVI") 2ETT circuit and related
(“CSMC BVI") Limited liability company products in Hong Kong
TELERGERRAA RERUES RERBEEK
(EEXEREE]) AREERF BRREBER
Advanced Microelectronics ~ BVI US$1 100% —  Investment holding in BVI
Limited (“AML”) Limited liability company = RRBRELEHSREER
EENETARAA RERLHS
([EEMETF]) BEREEARA
Qualibest Enterprises BVI US$1 100% —  Investment holding in BVI
Limited (“QEL") Limited liability company 1%L REBERHSREZR
BREXERAA RBRAES
(BmEX]) BEREEAT

177 CSMC TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment and

kind of legal entity

Issued and

fully paid up

Attributable

28 RMBARMNKRE @

HEMmA&L share capital equity interest Principal activities and
Name BRIBR/ #HRk 2RI Ptk place of operations
£ EEERER BRBRA RS TEEBREE M
Directly Indirectly
held held
EERE BERF
CSMC Technologies The PRC US$76,668,580 — 100%  Manufacture of integrated
Fab 1 Co., Ltd. (“Fab 1”) Wholly-owned foreign 76,668,580 T circuit and related
mIHEEE E B enterprise products in the PRC
BRAR ([—R) HE RABEHEERER K
NEBELE 1R Em
CSMC Technologies Fab 2 The PRC US$50,000,000 — 100%  Manufacture of integrated
Co., Ltd. (“Fab 2") Wholly-owned foreign 50,000,000 37T circuit and related
BHEE LERE enterprise products in the PRC
BRRA ([ZK)) HE (pre-operating as at
INEBERE 31 December 2005)
(R=ZTR&E+=A
=t-ARRERLE
BR) RPBERERK
ERREBER
Rightbest Limited (“Rightbest”) BVI US$1 100% —  Dormant
Limited liability company 1571 EEEY
REELHS
BREEAT

A

G e

B

= A
(=)

7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &
_

- 29 COMMITMENTS 29 7EIE
%Hg (a) Capital commitments (a) BEAEIE
Z‘% As at 31 December 2005, the Group had the following RZZEERF+TZA="+—
® significant capital commitments which were not provided for B AEEETIIRRASE
o in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group: RAEEEABRABENERXN
é B AR
L
<
2 2005 2004
2 US$'000 US$'000
& FER FE£7
E Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4B REE
g — Acquisition of plant — BERE Rk
Z and machinery 4,588 25,549
§ — Acquisition of information — BEEARERER
E technology system 929 —
5 Authorised but not contracted for: B HLAEERETA
'g — Acquisition of plant — IBEWE RS

and machinery 211,597 114,220

— Acquisition of information — BEEARE RS
technology system 3,235 2,863
220,349 142,632
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29 COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases as follows:

FAZING
- —FR

Factory premises and offices

— Within 1 year

— After 1 year but within 5 years
— HBBEF

— Later than 5 years

Others

Apart from the capital and operating lease commitments as
described in (a) and (b) above, the Group has also entered
into a co-operation agreement with Institute of
Microelectronics of Chinese Academy of Science (“IMECAS”)
on 19 October 2005 pursuant to which IMECAS would let
and/or sell certain manufacturing and office premises and
assets to the Group in relation to the manufacturing of wafer.
The Group will also inject additional machinery and
equipment, procure upgrades and improvement on

equipment provided by IMECAS.

— BB FETEAL

29 EIE @

2

) REHARE

RZETERF+_A=1+—
A SR AR R A A
BOBUTRRSERE AR
Gl

2005 2004
US$°000 US$000
FXn TET

1,519 1,631
4,732 5,015
6,251 6,646

Hft

B £ 3 (a) R (b) ATt 69 & 7R J 4%

BHOFAEN RZFTRF

TA+NB  AEEREPE
RERMETHEN ([HEF
DI —BEHH#HE B
bt MEFHABERRHH
EETERRUERENEER
MAMERBEETASHE - K
SE G E AT IME R AR
% RANKESHEFARME
HRR S -

A

G e

B

= A
(=)

7
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e B RAR M A

2

29 COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)

e

= (c) Others (Cont'd)

8

fi A brief summary of the assets provided by IMECAS and the
(s

o~
T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47

consideration thereon is set out below:

(i) asum of US$6,210,000 for the use of certain 4 inch
wafer equipment payable by yearly instalments over a

period of 10 years commencing in 2006;

(i) use of certain 6 inch wafer equipment at no cost during
the subsistence of the co-operation agreement with
IMECAS;

(i)  use of the manufacturing premises at no cost for a

period of 10 years;

(iv) the use of the office premises which annual rental
estimated to be approximately US$123,000 per annum
(subject to adjustment in accordance with the actual
space occupied by the Group and a separate lease

agreement);

(v) annual licence fees in the sum of US$377,000 per
annum (subject to a separate licence agreement(s))
for certain patented and non-patented technologies for

a period of 12 years commencing on 1 January 2006;

(vi) technical support fees for approximately US$386,500
per annum (subject to a separate technical support
agreement) for the provision of technical support

services to the Group.

29 K
(c)

- 4O

Hth (&)

B TR A B Rt ELK
WA ERERIMT

() FERETIENBERE
mERAG6,210,0003%
L BT RNFEA+

FAFEH BT

(il BEWMEFHHNEEHZ
MEXHEEEFRSE
TFeznt & E R

(i) THERNEREFREED
#®

(ivi EREABEFESL
123,000 TTH) PF A W0 3
(AIRBERAEEERANE
R E AR I
X—BERIHERZEM
)

v), BHZZZEAF—A—8
BT —_FRNXNETEH
) K IE F F) £ 900 K A E
F8#377,0003 T (¥ — 18
SARTERBEM
PR

(vi) AN 5 B4R 1 Bl 2 1R
RENEMEEREE
F4F#9386,5003 7T (2 —
BRI ERER
R) o
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30 BANKING FACILITIES 30 RMITAE

B

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had aggregate banking RZZBZAF+_A=+—H ' =K s

R

facilities as follows: SEMRITREAENAT : 5

o

2005 2004 -

2

US$’000 US$'000 é

FEx FET E

'_

0

o — =

Loan facilities BEXRRERE 147,848 137,658 =

Letters of credit EH&E 5,642 2,613 g

T

[m)

Total facilities RIEBEEEE 153,490 140,271 E

Less: amount utilized B EEBESE g

Loan facilities EXmE (42,152) (17,500) %

Letters of credit (HiiE (2,172) (781) 0

i

o)

Unused facilities REFARMEREE 109,166 121,990 0

5

pz4
As at 31 December 2005, the amount of utilized letter of credit was R-_ZETERF+_A=+—8B" B
guaranteed by certain of the Group’s pledge deposit amounted to PHEAENSERALNER SEL
approximately US$503,000 (2004: approximately US$111,000) 503,000 T (ZZEZTWFE : 4
(Note 21). 111,000%70) & T HEBTRIE

ER (HaE21) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

~

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r &

B 7% 3 2R MY &

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Name and relationship

Name

=L

31 BEAXIRS
(a) BBREBER

Relationship
&

Faithway Resources Limited (“Faithway”)

Central Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation (“CSMC Cayman”)
FEFERARAR ([ LEFERE])
China Resources Microelectronics
(Holdings) Limited (“CR Microelectronics”)
ERWEFER) BRI ([EBHEEF])
Central Semiconductor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (“CSMC-HK")
Wuxi China Resources
Microelectronics Co., Ltd (“Wuxi CR")
EHSERMETFARQR([EHER])
Wuxi China Resources Semico Co., Ltd.
(“Wuxi CR Semico”)
BHEBEYHMMEFERD
([EHERYR])
Wuxi Huajing Multi-Services Co., Ltd.
(“Wuxi Services”)
BEHERFERBAR DA
([EmHRE])

IPCore Technologies Corporation (“IPCore”)

A substantial shareholder of the Company

RABNEEZRE

Under significant influence of a director
and shareholder of the Company

REARANEERRRNERTE

Parent company of Faithway

Faithway BIEHA 7]

Wholly-owned subsidiary of CSMC Cayman
FELZENZENRBAR

Wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Microelectronics
ERMEFN2ERBR

A subsidiary of CR Microelectronics
as t0 99.5% of its issued shares

EHUREFHEBECETRNI9.5%NMEB LA

A subsidiary of Wuxi CR as to 95%
and Wuxi CR Semico as to 5%

EHEBRABLNESHERYRIFALY
ol MNC]

Under significant influence of a director and
shareholder of the Company

EARRNEERBRNEATE
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A

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 31 BEALTXRS @)

(@) Name and relationship (Cont'd) (a) BRERBER® E
R

Name Relationship Z-%
2

IPCore Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Wholly-owned subsidiary of IPCore g
(“IPCore SH”) IPCore R 2 & KB A ] E
RERE (B8 BRAR (MEERE(EE8)]) g
Wiston Management Limited (“Wiston”) Controlled by Directors of the Company Z;()
CENGEE £ 2T 2

Wuxi China Resources Huajing A subsidiary of Wuxi CR as to 75% and -
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Huajing”) CR Microelectronics as to 25% of its share capital Lg_(
BHENEANETERAR PR MRS BNETH B HT5% R 3
([mimER]) 25% AR AR I B 1 7] 3
Shenzhen China Resources Semico A subsidiary of Wuxi CR Semico as to 756% and lﬁ_:J
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen CR Semico”) CR Microelectronics as to 25% of its share capital E
RINZEEYRHUEF AR QA BEEREYMRERMEFORIEBHETS% R “g
(TRYIZBRR) 25% I As 8 B 22 7] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 31 BEALIRSZ @

e

5 (b) Related party transactions (b) BEALRS

RN

fﬂ During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group had RBE_ZETRF+-_A=+

o~
T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47

the following significant transactions with related parties.

Sales and purchases transactions are negotiated with related

parties in a normal course of business with a margin on the

same basis with non-related parties.

Sales of goods

— Wuxi CR Semico

— |PCore SH

— IPCore

— Shenzhen CR Semico
Utilities fee paid to Wuxi CR
Operating lease paid to Wuxi CR
Consulting fee paid to Wiston
Wafer milling services fee paid

to Wuxi CR and its subsidiary
Storage and transportation

fee paid to Wuxi CR and

Wuxi Services
Purchase of mask from Wuxi CR
Rental of staff quarters paid

to Wuxi CR and Wuxi Services
Design and technical service

fees paid to IPCore

HEREm

—mHEEEY R

—BnE (B8)

— &R

—RYIIEE R
MESERTNAREEER
AESHERZ NEEE0E S
[A] Wiston 3z < & A
S EE R R H B A A

X RETEREER
AR 85 28 R R 85 RS

X EF RERE A

REGEERELE
QESZEFEPSES N
XNETEEMES

RENIEETAN)
Rt REAMARF & B

—BHUEFER NEBEEEE
ATHWERRZWT - LEEE
ALTETHEERZIRER
EB@RETET  MEXRNE
EEIFFFEALTHER -

2005 2004
US$’000 US$'000
Fxn TET
11,438 13,737
3,221 3,310
3,136 1,296
1,005 642
11,684 8,940
1,353 1,102
234 465

88 360

156 130

24 21

14 20

666 1,363
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31

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(b) Related party transactions (Cont'd)

Key management compensation

Salary and other short
term employee benefits

Share-based payments

o kHEAMERREEER

PARSCAn 7R ERE R0 (8 1+

31 BEALTRE @

(b) BEAEXRZ (8

T RETEE N
2005 2004
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FT=T
599 1,067
212 177
811 1,244

o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & Bf 7 % & M &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 BEALRE @

i

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

H% hY
# (c) Related party balances (c) BBEALTHER
R
25 As at 31 December 2005, the Group and the Company had RZEERAF+A=1+—
(s
® the following significant balances with related parties: H AEBERAKAQAINEANH
” EATHEBOT :
&
=
E Group NEE
<
o
=
Z_'; 2005 2004
=z
s US$’000 US$'000
[T
a FTER FET
=
o Receivables from PEWREAE A £ 7R
(]
é related parties (Note 20): (B =E 20)
i (iy Trade i B
:C:’ — Wuxi CR Semico — IS BYR 2,548 3,080
@ ~IPCore SH —BERR (£8) 737 2,055
2 — IPCore — IR 270 136
— Shenzhen CR Semico — I EY R 251 436
3,806 5,707
(i)  Non-trade iy IFEBS
— CSMC Cayman — bEEEE 203 193
- CSMC HK — FERE 5 188
— IPCore SH — B/ (B8) 4 —
— IPCore — DR 4 —
- Wuxi CR — B 1 402
217 783
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c)

Related party balances (Cont'd)

Group

Payables to related
parties (Note 26):
(iy Trade
— Wuxi CR

(i) Non-trade
— CSMC Cayman
— Wuxi CR
— IPCore
— Wiston
— IPCore SH
- CSMC HK
— Wuxi Services

— Wuxi Huajing

FEBEEALRE
(Ff=E 26)
N EH
—EiH

(i) 3EES

— bEER
—E5ER

— R

— Wiston

— B (B8)
—LERE

— 5 IRT
—EHER

31 BEALRXRSE @

(c) BAEALAEER ()

rEE
2005 2004
Us$’000 US$'000
FER FT=T
1,183 971
476 —
94 1
36 455
23 16
294 29
18 —
15 43
2 —
958 544

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &
-

- 31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 31 MEALRSZ @)

%Hg (c) Related party balances (Cont'd) (c) BAEALT&EER @)

i-% Company AAFE

E 2005 2004

= US$’000 US$000

'é FER FxET

2

o Due from related FEREE A L HIE

s parties (Note 20) (B 20)

E — Subsidiaries of the Company — RN E A A 113,416 103,478

8

g Due to related FEBEA L RIE

é parties (Note 26) (Ff=E 26)

T — CSMC Cayman — FEEEeE 474 —

2 — Subsidiaries of the Company — AR RHIHI B AT 73 —

g — IPCore SH — BB (B8) 19 19

= — Wiston — Wiston 23 16

589 &5

As at 31 December 2005, all balances with related parties RZEZRF+_A=+—8 "
were unsecured, non-interest bearing and with no fixed BHREATHEBRAEEERR 28R
repayment terms. fEEEE A o
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32 WARRANTS

On 27 February 2004, the Company issued 17,400,000 unlisted
warrants at US$1 each with total proceeds of US$17,400,000.

Subscription monies paid by a holder of the warrants upon exercise
of the relevant warrants will be applied in paying up any ordinary
shares issued pursuant to such exercise. Such warrants are
exercisable on the date of the Company’s listing on 13 August
2004 and shall lapse on the date immediately following the first

anniversary of such date.

Pursuant to a supplement agreement dated 28 June 2004, the
Company and the holders of the warrants agreed that the price
per share payable for the subscription of shares upon the exercise
of a warrant shall be HK$0.5 (equivalent to approximately
US$0.064) per share, being the final offer price upon the listing of
the Company’s share, and a total of 271,440,000 shares would fall

to be issued should all the warrants be exercised.

Upon listing, all of the 17,400,000 warrants were exercised and
consequently 271,440,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.1 (equivalently to approximately US$0.013) each were issued
at HK$0.5 (equivalent to approximately US$0.064) each according
to the terms of the warrants resulting in a share premium of
approximately US$13,920,000.

32

nRER

RZBEENF-_A=_++tH &R
AR SN RRIEF1E T ERET
T 17,400,000 3F = RARKERZ - P
1SR IE4R%E 517,400,000 7T °

RIREETH ARITER BRRE
EMXNNRESE  BREHE
RITE R AR M TR E B
Peo ZERRBEARARR RN

—EENFENAR =B LHRT
£ UAENEREZAESE -BF
BB R -

BEBHAE-_TTMFAAZTN
BO@EEH®E AR RRBRIES
BRAEARE  HREETERRE
&M 1TH IR () FE - 80 B AR (B 48 1
~BIR0.5E T (KFE100.0643% 7T) -
HERAQAIRN EHRA &K E
B WMERREZEREITE -
Rller 2974 $£271,440,0000% 1% 15 -

R £ 17,400,00010 RAEZD
BREATE - Bt - RIBRREE
IR - BIREROGET (HER
0.0643 JT) #£17271,440,0008% & %
EE01B T (KE/0.013%7T) B E
AR - EEEAE4913,920,000% T HY

BRI A -

at

W R

& B

(=)

FON
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

33 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

(a)

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way of
ordinary resolution, adopted an “Equity Incentive Plan” (the
“Plan”) on 8 May 2004. Under the Plan the Company may
allocate the Company’s shares to full time employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) (the “participants”). The objective
of the Plan is to share the pride of ownership among the
executives and employees of the Group and to reward their
performance and contribution. The term of the Plan is 10

years from the date of adoption.

Under the Plan, the total number of shares which may fall to
be issued must not exceed 15% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time and, when aggregated with the
number of shares which may be issued under any other
employee incentive schemes (if any), must not exceed 30%
of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
Further, the total number of shares which may be issued
pursuant to the Plan in any financial year must not exceed
3% of the total number of shares in issue at the close of
business on the last business day of the preceding financial

year.

33 BABRAD 32 1Y BY 3R BN

(a)

B 47 52 B 5t 81
ARRBRRA-ZZTMFRA

=

NBERBEBRER  HER
MH&Hﬁmééﬁ(ﬁ%D°
RIEETE - ARB A AAR

&ﬁWE'ﬂmi%ﬁ;&E
Z(BENTES  FuTE

ERBIFNTES) (28
E DEARRKIKRD o 518
EEEASENTHRABRE
BURREMNOZREKR -
I B i FE R R AR © &
ZERMB BB AITF -

RIEETE - AIREHS T 31T HIAR
DEETBBBARARATEE
BT H16% » TN ET AR

(L 5 A (R SRS 80 () T
MEEBTHRDBE % - 713
HBAATE®ARE S
30% o WSh - TR EE
BREHEITT AL B AT RORAD BB
TBHBIE L — (B 0 B
o — A% 5 B B P SRBS
B B1TE R BB 3% o
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33 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Cont'd)

(a)

Equity Incentive Plan (Cont'd)

In general, the shares allocated under the Plan will vest in
equal portions over a period of four years commencing from
the date of the grant to the participants. Shares allocated will
only be issued once they vest and formal applications from
the respective participants are received. An administration
fee of US$0.01 per share is payable by the participant upon
application. Such vested and applied for shares will be issued

to the participants as bonus shares.

The fair value of options granted during the year determined
using the binomial model were HK$0.41 (first grant) and
HK$0.36 (second grant). The significant inputs into the model
were share price at the grant date of HK$0.49 (first grant)
and HK$0.45 (second grant), expected dividend paid out
rate of 1% and annual risk-free interest rate of 1.99%. The
volatility is measured based on the volatility return on Hang

Seng Index for the past ten years.

33 AR TR (o)

(a)

IR R B e A ()

BIEMS - RIBFTEDEHR
BB SEEOER
ZHERNBEZAER2EER
T BEDENBRNDBERZE
ERERBABALTRZ TRE
WEER2EENIEXHAFR
A TIAET  2EENED
B &R I B & AR 0.01 X T AT
BER - -ZEFoREBRIED
B & B9 IR0 S A AL R 5 IR T
Sk o

FA - FMAZEARXEEAHR
RHBRENAFER. 415
T (BB L) R0.368 T (5=
REH) - ZRAFMANEE
BER AR L BHAARE0.49%
T (EREE) k0458 T (=
REH) ~ FEHIRZEARE X
1% K2 S @B 6 1 26 1.99% © %
B DR IEB A T FBEREN
U EEE

A

TR & M &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7%= & Bt & 3 & KM &

% 33 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Contd) 33 BIRM <A HEREN (=)
%Hg (a) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont'd) (a) REEBFTE @)
B
= Details of the shares under the Plan are as follows: STEIETHREFEOAT :
" Total number of shares under the Total number of shares under the
g Plan as at 1 January 2005 Plan as at 31 December 2005
= R-R¥EE-A-8 RoREEE+=AZ+-A
'é SEETHRGAY FEETHRGAY
g Allocated Allocated Vested Issued  Allocated
= but not duringthe  duringthe during the but not
% vested year year year vested
@ Name E2E Vested Total BR 2R BR B828  Vested Total
5 #4 EkSE £SE 88 FASE  SASE  FARG  EABE  CSE 28
§ '000 ‘000 '000 ‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 000 ‘000
§ R FR 0 TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
T
S Directors ¥z
i - Peter Chen —RIEF 6,415 1,402 7817 — 1,750 3,152 4,665 — 4,665
lg - Robert Lee S IUES 4,582 1,268 5,850 = 1,250 2,518 3332 — 3332
- Gene Tsai —EHE 3,665 671 4,336 = 1,000 1,671 2,665 = 2,665
Employees E& 110,502 15,980 126,482 4,746 44,031 59,471 217 540 71,757
125,164 19,321 144,485 4,746 48,031 66,812 81,879 540 82,419
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33 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Cont'd)

(b)

Share Options Plan

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way of
ordinary resolution, adopted a “Share Option Scheme” (the
“Scheme”) on 27 May 2005. Under the Scheme, the Company
may issue options to the directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries and any advisors, consultants, distributors,
contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Scheme participants”). The objective of
the Scheme is to provide the Scheme participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage the Scheme participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The

term of the Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

33 AR TR (o)

SBRESTE
AR RRE AL BARER
Rl RAARR-TRRF

EFAZ+TtEEEM—ETER
HEtE ] ([5H81]) - RIEET
£ - $’\ﬁﬂﬁﬂ$/\ﬁj&ﬁf‘ﬁ
BLrANES (BERT

= 3?%17?%&5%13'5%{7
EF)REE  UREMAAR
AIREMBARNEEREMR
AR - DiEME - B - AE
AER - HERRE TP -
BERY SECERA (5T
g 2mE ) FLBAE - 518
WERRE2EEGREE
RARM AR - WS E
FEIZEERAARRAIRE
BERNEEFSEAARRAR
HRHOHEE - stEINFHH
AR AETE o

A

G e

B

4 A
[N =]
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33 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Cont'd)

M _

e (b) Share Options Plan (Cont'd) (b) BRR#EE (&

&Y

ff The exercise price is determined by the Remuneration TEEEHESEBE THM
(s

% Committee, a committee of the Board comprising two ZEg(BESFE TR -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Director as established by the Board from time to time, at its
absolute discretion and notified to the participant in the offer

and shall not be less than the higher of :

— the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited on the date of grant;

— the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the five business

days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

— the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

An option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during
a period to be notified by the Board to each grantee at the
time of making an offer, which shall not expire later than ten

years from the date of grant.

No option was granted under the Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2005.
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34 PENSIONS - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the Group and its Hong Kong employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of Hong Kong dollar 1,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$128) per person per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. When employees leave before the funds
vest, contributions from the Group are forfeited and available to
reduce future contribution of the Group. There was no forfeited
contributions available at the year end to reduce future contributions
(2004: Nil).

Pursuant to PRC laws and regulations, contributions to the basic
old age insurance for local staff of the Company’s subsidiaries
operating in the PRC are made monthly to a government agency
based on 29% of the standard salary set by the provincial
government, of which 22% is borne by the subsidiaries and the
remainder is borne by the staff. The government agency is
responsible for the pension liabilities relating to such staff on their

retirement.

Contribution totalling US$52,000 (2004: US$69,000) were payable

to the funds at year end.
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35

36

37

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, the Group has provided corporate guarantee to a
third party bank for the down payment mortgage loan, in addition
to the pledged bank deposit as set out in Note 21, of its employees
amounting to approximately US$340,000 (2004: US$62,000).
Management anticipate that no material liabilities will arise from

the above guarantees.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 1 March 2006, the Group has entered into a supplementary
agreement with IMECAS pursuant to which the effective date of
the co-operation agreement as described in Note 29(c) has been

postponed from 1 January 2006 to 1 April 2006.

COMPARATIVES

Certain comparative figures were reclassified to conform to the

current year presentation.

35
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37
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